CHEMUNG COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

MEETING NOTES

SEPTEMBER 28, 2023
Present
Henry Dalrymple, Chair

Joseph Coletta

Mark Watts

Emma Miran 
Michelle Podolec 

Arthur Jones

Kevin Meindl, Staff

Alison Herman, Staff

Nanette Moss, Staff 

James DeFilippo, Esq., Chemung County Attorney’s Office

Excused
Scott Shaw

Elisabeth Corveleyn 

Andrew Avery
 







1. Call to order at 3:00 p.m.

2. Approval of Meeting Notes - After discussion of the August 24, 2023 notes there were no questions, comments or corrections from the Board and the minutes were approved as distributed.  



3. Visitor Comments (accepted after each referral review) Visitor Marilyn Paulo
4. Zoning Referrals 

5. Staff Comments 

A. CITY OF ELMIRA – Rezoning – City of Elmira 
Present:  Scott Drake, Cheryl Allen, Fred Loomis, Tony and Phyllis McKlevis, Joann Thompson, Kim Eveland, Lynette Roxford, Mike Hamilton; Patrick Pinkerton and Thomas Rickettson, CDS Housing
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that Request for review of proposed rezoning for property currently zoned Residence P Zoning District (Planned Residential) to a Residence A District (One Family). Property is located at 910 Maple Ave. Lot B which borders Park Way within 500’ of the Town of Southport boundary line.  K. Meindl reported that in our review of the proposed senior housing project earlier in the year of this same parcel of land to redevelop into a multi-family complex, the board recommended local determination.  The City of Elmira wishes to rezone from the current Residential “P” to Residential “A” and is consistent with surrounding area of single family and seems to fit.  This is local issue for the City to address.  There are a few relatively minor SEQR items missing.  The parcel exists of 4.5 acres.  It was previously a single parcel and was split into two parcels and they built one side.  This parcel is on the other side of that development.  We do not see any countywide impact and recommend local determination.
No questions were raised by the Board.

No concerns were noted by the Board.

H. Dalrymple asked if there were any visitor comments and individuals spoke a follows:
Scott Drake advised that he is a resident of Maple Ave. and is on the Chemung County Legislature noting this is a past issue regarding the proposed construction of a second housing project which issue he said affects life and is extremely concerned.  He believed that the City made a mistake years ago when they amended the zoning to Planned Residential.  The proposed rezoning would make it right for the people living in that area.

Mike Hamilton advised that he is a resident of Fairway Ave. and his property backs up to the parcel in question.  He also believes the previous rezoning was a mistake.  He noted environmental issues of the existing housing project with Miller Pond and possibly Southport with drainage going into the pond which flows downstream.  There are many homes situated on 20 acres near the pond who use the park there, walking, fishing, etc.  He does not want to see the proposed housing development built.  He wished to clarify that 20% of the first building was for AIM residents under 55 years old.  This occurred after they struck a deal regarding deed restriction.  AIM residents sold advantage affordable senior housing.  No one here is against that.  There are plenty of places to build and not in city residential.  Thirty percent of those for new are going to AIM residents and homeless.  There is a need for housing single family residential neighborhood and was concerned that rent check goes to Rochester.  Every dollar of equity will be stolen taken to Rochester.  That is what we are up against.   
Kim Eveland advised that she is a resident of Fairway Ave.  Water damage resulting from the existing housing project forced water through grates.  She does not want to see a second project built.  

Patrick Pinkerton of CDS Housing noted that prior to the Chemung County Planning Board meeting to review the site plan, it was stated it was consistent with the comprehensive plan.  There is an existing senior development on an adjacent lot.  There is a need for infill and senior housing.  The process the city is following is improper and illegal.  Stating reason for changing opinion of the neighbors opposed to zoning or planning concerns that aligns with planning.  It needs to be made on the merits of the plan the community has outlined regardless of the opinions of neighbors.  There are 137 people on a waiting list for the new building.  They need this housing.  This is a privately owned lot.  The site plan was approved by the city.  We feel that to rezone it to this is exclusionary, is spot zoning and makes the lot financially unviable.  CDS made an investment in this property.

Thomas Rickettson of CDS Housing noted that the site plan was approved and said the rezoning is an effort to pull out the rug from CDS.  It is not a proper channel.  Any change to the zoning should be considered measured, process that is not based on neighborhood outrage.  We understand there are concerns.  Those were raised in the site plan process.  Attempted to change back to single family zoning that fits neighborhood.  The neighborhood now contains this multi-family housing.  We think it fits in the character in the neighborhood.  Affordable housing is in dire need, in accordance with the comprehensive plan.  The lot is private property.  They have the right to develop it.  The city on SEQR form did acknowledge there could be an issue with the comprehensive plan checked NA any change in zoning needs to conform with the comprehensive plan.  Changes were met.  CDS has invested time and money.  We urge that you disapprove the rezoning.  
Cheryl Allen advised that she lives in the neighborhood in her family home and does not wish to see a three-story in the only greenspace she can see from her home where she grew up.  There are problems with the current apartments where tenants are yelling obscenities, partying going on at 1:00 a.m.

Joann Thompson advised she lived at 244 Fairway Ave.  Her property would be directly affected in her back yard.  She agreed with Mike Hamilton and Cheryl Allen.

H. Dalrymple thanked everyone for their comments.  K. Meindl appreciated everyone for coming and their input and acknowledged this is a mostly single-family residential neighborhood, however there is currently a large multi-family residential building there so arguing for consistency to the character of the surrounding neighborhood could go either way since both single family and multi-family are currently in this neighborhood.  Concerns raised over storm water would need following-up with a licensed engineer or some more objective investigation to prove out, as right now it is only speculation. There may be some public outcry but we are not voting specifically on that. It is common for planning activities and decisions to include public comments and public hearings. The referral from the City is clear and reiterated that this is a city issue over zoning of a single parcel and that the re-zoning itself for this parcel in question would not have a County-wide impact, that it should be resolved at the local level, and so recommend local determination.
H. Dalrymple agreed with K. Meindl’s recommendation for local determination and asked if there were any other questions or comments.  K. Meindl commented that affordable housing is needed and that the City should be mindful of that in their final decision.  H. Dalrymple called for a motion including K. Meindl’s comments.
MOTION:             Made by Mark Watts, seconded by Michelle Podolec, recommending local determination of the proposed rezoning stating no countywide or inter-community impact along with comments that SEQR EAF Question 6 be addressed, and that the city be mindful of the need for affordable housing.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

B. CITY OF ELMIRA – Approval of Site Plan – Ferris
Present:  David Adams, AJH Design
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that Request for approval of site plan to permit construction of 21 residential apartment units among the second through fourth floors of an existing building in a CBD (Central Business District) Zoning District.  Property is located at 111-115 N. Main St. within 500’ of W. Water St. (SR 352).  K. Meindl reported that petitioner would be renovating the interior with no exterior improvements adding that the Board had reviewed a similar referral on W. Water St. and had recommended approval of that site plan.  Great to see redevelopment and reinvestment for an existing building. There are no parking details, however, there is a parking garage nearby. 
M. Watts asked if there were elevators planned and David Adams advised there is an existing elevator.  M. Podolec inquired about the noted possibility for basement level apartments to which K. Meindl advised that it would need to be determined considering flood zone status.  David Adams advised that they are not considering basement level apartments anymore.  
K. Meindl noted the productive redevelopment of an existing building for more housing units including accessible units, and recommend approval.

H. Dalrymple asked if there were any comments from the Board and there were none.  He called for a recommendation for city approval of the proposed site plan.    
MOTION:
Made by Arthur Jones, seconded by Joseph Coletta, recommending city approval of the proposed site plan.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

C. CITY OF ELMIRA – Approval of Site Plan – Maio/New York Sport & Fitness
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that Request for approval of site plan to permit construction of addition to existing New York Sport & Fitness facility in a CBD (Central Business District) Zoning District.  Property is located at 134 W. Water St. within 500’ of (SR 352).  K. Meindl reported that petitioner wishes to expand existing business with a building addition on a quarter acre at the rear of the property which includes a portion of the parking lot.  It is not in the Historic District but next to it and is consistent with the aesthetics of the rest of the building.
H. Dalrymple asked if there were any questions or comments from the Board and there were none.  He commented that it is good to see the property owner continuing to invest in the property to grow and expand.  He called for a motion for local determination with no comments. 
No concerns were raised by the Board.
MOTION:             Made by Mark Watts, seconded by Arthur Jones, Emma Miran abstaining, recommending local determination of the proposed site plan stating no countywide impact.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried.    
_____________________________________________________________________________________

D. TOWN OF HORSEHEADS – Approval of Site Plan – Smith 
Present:  Christine N. Smith
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that Request for approval of site plan to permit renovation of former Elmira Savings Bank building to establish a drive-thru coffee shop with café seating and outdoor seating area the Commercial Retail Zoning District.  Property is located at 2081 Lake Rd. within 500’ of Lake Rd. (CR 65).  K. Meindl reported that petitioner wishes to repurpose an existing former bank building into a coffee shop utilizing the existing drive-thru infrastructure and layout.  He asked if the existing entrance and exit will remain unchanged and was advised by Christine Smith that no changes were planned.  K. Meindl advised that A. Avery indicated that he had no comments.  K. Meindl also noted that responses to some SEQR questions were left unanswered. The preliminary site plan sketch is not stamped, engineer drawings will be forthcoming.  Christine Smith advised that Andy Harding is their architect and is preparing drawings for the interior based on the survey.  K. Meindl noted that the proposed business is a good productive reuse of the site.  He asked if the proposed patio planned for the front and was advised by Christine Smith it would be between the building and Lake Rd. and that at this time there are bushes located there they wish to remove along with a concrete pad with a low profile fence with cable.  There is a jog of 6’-7’ in the area where there is nothing, then the property line deed Right-Of-Way.  K. Meindl asked about exterior lighting and was advised by Christine Smith that it is the old bank lighting with modern LED lights.  K. Meindl asked about signage and was advised they will use the existing pole, following town’s guidelines.  There is 94 square feet front side, signage is out front.  
No concerns were raised.

K. Meindl noted it looks like a positive reuse of an existing site but without county-wide impact so recommends local determination. 
H. Dalrymple asked if there were any other questions or comments and there being none called for a motion for local determination with comments regarding the SEQR EAF form unanswered questions noted and that this is a good redevelopment of an existing parcel and good conversion of the property.
MOTION:             Made by Michelle Podolec, seconded Emma Miran, recommending local determination of the proposed site plan stating no countywide or inter-community impact along with comment that Question 5b be answered on the SEQR form.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________

E. TOWN OF BIG FLATS – Approval of Site Plan – Pladis Global 

Present:  Dave Adams
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that request for approval of site plan to permit construction of expansion of existing snack foods manufacturing facility (formerly known as DeMets) to allow for future

silos in the Airport Business Development (ABD) Zoning District.  Property is located at 1 Turtle Circle within 500’ of Daniel Zenker Dr. (CR 80) and Hunt Center/Turtle Circle (CR 83).

K. Meindl reported that the proposed site plan indicates desired expansion of the existing manufacturing facility where two silos are proposed and large working space.  It encroaches somewhat on a wetland.  The town is looking at it.  K. Meindl asked if the silo height is 35’-45’ and was advised by Dave Adams that originally it was 45’ and that a meeting with airport officials they are going to 60’ with airport approval, explaining that a previous variance allowed up to a 60’ height for an existing silo.  The limitation for the zone is 35’ and the variance is 45’ with maximum of 60’.  K. Meindl asked if they were expanding operations adding jobs and Dave Adams advised they were adding manpower. K. Meindl asked about the encroachment on the wetland to which Mark Watts said it did not look significant and was not concerned.  Dave Adams said it is under NEPA review.  K. Meindl said it is located within the ABD zone.  The airport has jurisdiction over heights.   H. Dalrymple asked if there were any questions or comments.  It is a job creator for the area, a big facility.  It is continued investment and growing to create more jobs and is a benefit with a positive countywide impact.  My thought would be to recommend approval.  Comment list of things to work through in Big Flats which Big Flats is on that.  As long as it already attended to that, good to see.  K. Meindl said language with contingent on Big Flats could be added.  Review and approval.  H. Dalrymple asked for thoughts, local versus approval.  Mark Watts would say approval.  Michelle Podolec was in favor as long as they address the issues with Big Flats.  H. Dalrymple said we have approval with the comment they work on the list Big Flats provided seems to be a positive step for the county, positive countywide impact. 
No concerns were raised.

H. Dalrymple asked if there were any other questions or comments and there being none called for a motion for approval of the proposed sit plan with comments they work through the list of issues Big Flats provided.
MOTION:             Made by Arthur Jones, seconded Mark Watts, recommending approval of the proposed site plan along with comment that they work through the list of issues Big Flats provided.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________

F. TOWN OF ERIN – Special Use Permit – McIlwain 

Present:  Deda Cedar, Chairwoman, Planning Board
DISCUSSION:
H. Dalrymple advised that there is a request for a special use permit to allow conversion of existing pole barn on petitioner’s property to establish and operate a commercial auto body repair shop in the AR1-R (Agricultural Residential) Zoning District.  Property is located at 1198 Breesport Rd. within 500’ of Marsh-South Rd. (CR 4) and SR 224.

K. Meindl reported that petitioner wishes to keep cars needing work at the rear of property and refurbished cars in front.  The body workshop is for auto repair. Missing Ag data statement and Town of Erin Planning Board Chairwoman Deda Cedar brought a copy to the meeting. Deda Cedar said there were no comments or concerns noted at the public hearing.  K. Meindl advised that he saw no countywide impact.  Deda Cedar informed that it is a 1-2 man operation.  Brandon Milwain lives on the same property which is next to a cemetery.  
No concerns were raised.

K. Meindl noted that there were no concerns and recommended local determination.

H. Dalrymple asked if there were any other questions or comments and there being none called  for a motion for local determination.
MOTION:             Made by Joseph Coletta, seconded Arthur Jones, recommending local determination of the proposed site plan stating no countywide impact.  Members in favor, all; opposed, none. Motion carried.  
_____________________________________________________________________________________

5.
Visitors Comments:  None.
Planning Commissioner’s Report – Kevin Meindl:

K. Meindl presented items at today’s meeting for discussion. 

Planning Commissioner:

K. Meindl advised the Board that work has started with Fisher Associates on the Comprehensive Plan.  Fisher Associates representatives joined via Webex and gave a short presentation to introduce the project. Alison Herman will be the primary contact. 
M. Watts advised that the Storm Water Team could not attend today.  They will be at the next meeting.

Next CCPB Meeting:
Our next meeting will be in person unless there is no quorum.  We plan to meet next on October 26, 2023.

Meeting adjourned at 4:18 p.m.
